AutoPrint

User Manual



© 2021 4-TECH-ENGINEERING AutoPrint Version 8.01 User Manual Release 2021-08

Contents	
What AutoPrint does	3
How AutoPrint works	3
Fast Lane	4
Step 1: Input File Folder	5
Step 2: Graphics processing	6
Step 3: Printer settings	7
Step 4: Finally print something with the new print channel	8
AutoPrint complete guide	9
Setting up AutoPrint in detail	11
Input File Folder	11
Graphics processing	12
Printer Settings	15
Event Handling	16
System Settings	17
About and Licensing	19
AutoPrint as a service	20

Support: <u>Support@4-tech-engineering.com</u>

AutoPrint @ 4-TECH-ENGINEERING 1998-2021 Windows , Android are trademarks under the CopyRight of the respective companies.

What AutoPrint does

The main purpose of AutoPrint is automatic batch printing of PDF, text or bitmap image files in many particular layouts and types for your personal use cases. The file processing is done without any user interaction and supports your workflow in many different ways.

PDF documents and any **BMP**, **JPG**, **JPEG**, **GIF**, **PNG**, **TIF**, **TIFF** (including multi-page) bitmap image files are processed without the need of external applications. You can address any installed Windows printer, including LAN or WAN attached printers. **TXT**, **LOG**, or other native text files are transferred through a Windows canvas and thereby can be printed the way you define. Optionally add **watermarks** and **header** or **footer** text lines, including page numbers, file names and more.

Multiple page layout setups can be pre-defined for each accessible printer. After the successful output the input-files are deleted automatically or moved to any user defined folders. These also contain local sync-folders created by cloud services, e.g. Dropbox and OneDrive, which allow you to save your documents in your favorite cloud space after printing them.

AutoPrint runs as a desktop application, visible or minimized to the system tray or as an unattended Windows32 **service** (*Professional license*).

How AutoPrint works

In order to understand the basic operating principle and to get the most of all below described features, please carefully read this short paragraph.

AutoPrint continuously monitors **pre-defined file input** folders, local or remote, for printable files, locks them for **processing** and sends their contents to **corresponding printers**. Finally, the input files are deleted or stored into a separate folder. If the storing destination leads to another input folder the files are passed to a next printer and so on.

Print channel

The combination of a <u>file input folder</u>, an optional set of individual <u>image processing parameters</u> and an assigned <u>printer spooler setup</u> is called a **print channel**.



Setup of a print channel

Each print channel allows a bunch of individual printer and page settings, scheduling, and final file handling definitions. Depending on the license version you may define as many print channels as you need.

Fast Lane

Congratulations! You successfully installed AutoPrint, and you already have started the application.

Initially your screen should look like this now. In this chapter, we'll throw you right into the action and let you create your first functional print channel. You will find detailed explanations for everything further down in this handbook.

On this page five of the most important items are numbered and explained here. In the following chapters the focus will lay on the many features of AutoPrint.



- (1) This is the setup and administration area. We will cover this in the detailed guide later. The system is ready to work without the need to interact with these settings.
- (2) Hovering over or clicking this field will always lead back to the list of your print channels shown in (4).
- By hovering over one of these fields, you can switch between the three main print cannel option groups. Best Practice here would be following the arrows from left to right.
 Create a new print channel with the button (5).

Let's start this little tutorial by hovering over *Input file* and diving directly into Step 1.

Step 1: Input File Folder

AutoPrint™ About & License System Event handling	Pret dawnel Exable Nume 2 Pret dawnel 42 3 Pret dawnel 42 4 Pret dawnel 44 5 Pret dawnel 45 6 Pret dawnel 45 7 Print channel #1 V Autostart	Input file folder Graphics processing Printer settings
Input folder Define the Input folder Input fo	ie input folder being minitored for new print files Ider PrintFiles\Printer	Folder location and access privileges verified
Scheduler Option: 5 2 Monday Frs : min 00 00 00 00	Checkedule the print channel activity during the week Tuesday Vednesda: Thursday hrs : min Friday hrs : min Saturday hrs : min 00	Leave checked from 00 to 00 for continuous 24 hrs operation
Before processing Ch	eck conditions before starting the next print job max. number of pending jobs in printer spooler Leave at 0 to disable this item	If the maximum number is reached, the print channel will keep retrying every second
After print Decide w 4 m C:\Terr If a file r Be caref	what shall happen to the input files after the print process lete the file powe the file into the following archive folder paname is repeated it will be modified by adding a timestamp-id. Wat ul if storing into an existing AutoPrint input folder - you may end u	Folder access to be verified ch the folder for overloading! p in an endless print loop.

(1) We start by selecting an *Input folder*. This will be the place where AutoPrint is looking for new input files for printing.

(2) The scheduler is optional. It lets you preconfigure on which days and times you may want the program to process your print channel. We will leave this as is for now.

(3) To avoid overloading your printer spooler, you can set a maximum number of jobs to be pending. Setting this to zero disables this functionality. If your maximum amount is reached, AutoPrint will pause for a while. For the beginning we will leave this on zero (default), too.

(4) Finally tell AutoPrint what to do with the printed file? Keep or delete? You decide. Now, please go ahead and hover over *Graphics processing* in the top bar.

Step 2: Graphics processing

AutoPrint™ About & License System Event handling	Intel devel & tradied level	Input file folder Graphics processing Printer settings	3	Save changes
Elt type monitor Eltmap graphics JPG PNG TIF Others Text files TXT, LOG	Graphic rendering & processing quality	Main input graphic scaling options ■ Scale graphic to defined target print area ■ Ignore input aspect ratio ■ Center graphic to target print area ■ Static graphic object Enabled ■ Additive overlay ■ Stretch horizontally ■ Stretch vertically ■ Stretch to the defined target print area ■ Keader or footer text object Enabled < >> Date <p> Page No here here <</p>	The print-page dimensions and layout parameters have not been completed yet.	Printer
Mixed content	 Direct print (no graphics processing) Use document settings Auto-Scale Auto-Rotate 	<n> Document file name position Text object, optionally including system variable(s)</n>		3
Raw print data	🗌 Auto-Scale 🗹 Auto-Rotate	system variable(s)	P L 🔌	

This view visualizes the process and is to be seen from left to right.

(1) Start by defining which file types AutoPrint should react to. While in the Fast Lane, we do not care about the specific options in the middle of this view.

(2) Please choose one or more input file formats you want to try AutoPrint out with. Assuming that we are printing PDF files as well, leave the default *Direct print* option active.

(3) Save changes made so far.

Step 3: Printer settings



(1) A final step almost completes fast lane: just choose one of your printers from the list for output. You could also adjust all printer driver settings in detail here. But for now, we do not need that and finally want to see the first page coming out of the printer, right? :)

(2) Let us round this up by pressing *Save changes* in the top right corner and go back to the *Select Print Channel* menu.

Step 4: Finally print something with the new print channel

After creating the first default print channel to start with, you should see something like this, based on your input data from steps one to three.

Print cha	nnel Autostar	t Name	Input folder	Printer (given local name)	PDF direct	Max in spooler
• 1	V	Print channel #1	C:\AutoPrintFiles\Printer	Microsoft Print to PDF		0

Now find a file with the file type you specified in step two and copy it into the *Input folder* you chose in step one.

AutoPrint complete guide

Whether you've taken the Fast Lane or not, here we explain AutoPrint down to the smallest detail.

If you had previous versions 6 or 7 of AutoPrint installed (welcome back!) you will be asked if you would like to import your former setup. Clicking *Yes* will import your former print channels and their corresponding settings. The former version will not be affected by this step, you may continue using it. Just take care that both versions, the former and the new one, are not going to process the same input folders at the same time.



There is a valid print channel setup from a previous AutoPrint installation.
Would you like to import the previous setup?
NO YE

This is your AutoPrint application window. You can get back here anytime while AutoPrint is running, by clicking the AutoPrint Icon in your Windows trace bar.



(1) In the *Print Channel Monitor* on the left, each successfully created and running print channel will be looking like this.



(2) Clicking on the *Active* button within the channels top bar will manually start or stop the individual print channels activity.

(3) Clicking on *Start/Stop application activity* button will manually start or stop <u>all</u> print channels activity. While these are turned off, nothing will be printed automatically.

(4) Logging information is written here when your print channels are running and can help you or the support team if there arise any questions.

(5) The *Setup* Button leads to the heart of AutoPrint. Here all necessary settings are made. In the opposite to former versions, you can leave AutoPrint running active while doing the setup work. Only the modified print channels are being restarted after saving the parameters.

We will cover the whole setup secret in the next steps.

Setting up AutoPrint in detail

Input File Folder

AutoPrint [™] About & License System Event handling	Print channel #1 Print channel #1 Print channel #1 Print channel #1 Print channel #1 Select print channel	Input file folder Graphics processing Printer settings
Input folder Define th	ne input folder being minitored for new print files Ider PrintFiles\Printer	Folder location and access privileges verified
Scheduler Option: s 2 Monday Irs : min 00 00 00 00	Schedule the print channel activity during the week Y <	Leave checked from 00 to 00 for continuous 24 hrs operation
Before processing Ch	eck conditions before starting the next print job max. number of pending jobs in printer spooler Leave at 0 to disable this item	If the maximum number is reached, the print channel will keep retrying every second
After print Decide w	vhat shall happen to the input files after the print process lete the file ove the file into the following archive folder op name is repeated it will be modified by adding a timestamp-id. Wate ul if storing into an existing AutoPrint input folder - you may end up	b the folder for overloading!

This is the AutoPrint setup area. We will point out the details here, in the order they usually occur during a print channels creation process. The top navigation bar will guide you through the print channel setup process from left to right. A print channel starts with an input file folder which is observed by the AutoPrint application or service.

(1) So which folder is to be observed is the first decision to make. You can of course leave it default (if any) or choose an existing or new file path of your liking.

(2) Do you want AutoPrint to process files around the clock, or only between the morning / evening hours? Here you can define exactly when you want your prints to be scheduled.

(3) If your printer is a busy worker, you might want to limit your printer cue. If you change the value from 0 (default), AutoPrint will wait until the cue is below your defined limit until it processes the print job. However, if you choose to leave the default value, AutoPrint will pile up as much as stuffed into the print channels folder.

(4) Do you want to archive or review your file after it is printed? Here you can choose where to move the file after the job is done or simply remove the file completely.

Next step is the graphics processing. You can get there by choosing it in the navigation bar in the middle between the blue arrows.

Graphics processing

Presumed that your input files are containing bitmap graphic objects, the following items will directly control how these objects are being processed and adjusted in order to best fit to your output page layout. Even native text files or PDF files are first being converted into bitmap graphics internally, unless you uncheck this option (see below).

Like the navigation bar, this screen follows a left to right manner. The processing information is configured in the order they are needed during the print automation process.



(1) So, let's start with the *File type monitor*. When you configured an input folder location, you might have stumbled upon the question, if everything in this folder is considered for printing. May be the destination where a different process, program or persons store their data which should be ignored during the print channel observation.

Here you can choose which file types AutoPrint should react to.

(2) Next would be the *Graphic rendering & processing quality*. You can choose whatever your printer is capable of, in the unit dpi (dots per inch). Just be aware, that a value higher than the needed result quality, will increase memory usage and processing time by square. Make sure that your computer is equipped with the sufficient amount of random memory. A dpi value in the range of 300 ... 600 has turned out as a very good compromise between demands and results in nearly all use cases.

(3) In the *Main input graphic scaling options,* you decide if and how your input file should be scaled in any way, or by not ticking anything, not influencing it in this perspective.

(4) *Static graphic object.* Do you want to add a watermark, a company logo, or any other graphic of your choice? Here you can select a file and stretch it depending on your use case.

(5) By using the *Header or footer text object* you can print additional information like time and date or document information somewhere on your page.

(6) Text files printing

Native text files, encoded as ANSI or Unicode, are being converted to an internal bitmap graphic prior to printing. Several basic parameters can be setup here.

(7) Mixed content (PDF files)

PDF files can hold a variety of different printable objects, mainly text, vector and/or bitmap graphics.

Depending on the use case you may want to fine-tune some layout parameters prior to printing. In this case you will uncheck the *Direct print* option and let AutoPrint render the PDF content to an internal graphic screen and let it flow into the normal graphic process as described in (2,3,4,5) and in (9).

Otherwise, if no processing is needed, you may activate the *Direct print* option (default). As most printers support PDF-input data, the content will be sent more or less directly to the printer spooler. The advantage in speed can about 10:1 with only low memory usage.

(8) Raw print data - any other

If this option is checked, files that are not included in the row of file-types shown above are being handled as raw print files and being sent directly to the printer spooler. Make sure that only real print files would reach the defined input folder.

(9) Preview panel

The panel not only shows the live-results during your graphical fine-tuning work as a small preview. It also allows the final positioning and scaling. In order to get it alive you may first need to choose a printer on the next tab and then come back here. This is necessary to receive a valid set of real target paper dimensions.

P - Selects a portrait sample input file.

L - Selects a landscape sample input file.

Folder - Opens a dialogue for selecting a user defined sample file.

The bottom right button moves the preview panel to a separate scalable window.



If the former settings allow any *scaling of the graphic objects to a defined target area*, AutoPrint will render the graphic objects into this target print area.

Clicking into this area will bring the black frame into focus stating *Target print area*. It is moveable and sizable within the complete printer page scope and represents the actual print area on the real-world piece of paper.

The purple outer border indicates the non-printable area as reported by the printer driver.

You might already have noticed a new window popping up: *Target print area [mm]*. If you have a very clear requirement, you can simply enter it here in 'mm', so you do not have to do all the precision work with the dragging tool.

(10) Reserved for a future version: the *Printer* column will provide some basic information on the selected printer.

Finally, you are able to configure the printer itself. Just navigate one tab further in the top navigation bar and choose *Printer Settings*

Printer Settings

AutoPrint** About & License System Event handling Select print channel	Print channel Print channel #1 Autostart	Input file folder	Raphics processing Printer setting	s	
OneNote for Windows 10 OneNote (Desktop) Microsoft V85 Document Writer Microsoft Print to PDF Fax Brother DCP-J4120DW	2 Printer settings	s control	Paper size control Use individual size Width [mm] x Height [mm] 210,0 297,0 Paper size values are dynamically adjusted to the source graphics dimensions.	210.0 mm	
Microsoft Print to PDF Paper size [9] Paper tray Print quality, dots resolution [dpi] Printable paper area [mm ²] Minimum supported paper size [mm ²] Maximum supported paper size [mm ²]	A4 (210 x 297) mm ² Widh x Height 600 x 600 210,0 x 297,0 139,7 x 210,0 297,0 x 431,8 Auto turn it The paper orient controled by Auto match with prim	rientation atom s Definit for best not yet	w preview 1 + x avalable Repeated print	90 x 160 mm @ 300 dp	AutoPart fre File Name
				PL 👒	11

(1) Let's start by choosing the printer on the left we are going to use. The green light indicates if printer access is verified. This is necessary to be sure, if a printer will be available / reachable over the network and accepting our request.

(2) This button will open the standard Windows printer driver settings. Here you can configure all options which your printer driver offers to Windows. It is recommended having a local instance of each remote printer installed as a spooler on the machine, where AutoPrint is working.In contrast to former AutoPrint versions, it is no more necessary to provide elevated access privileges to the printer settings.

(3) Adopting current defaults will copy the current printers default setup which is linked to your windows user account. This can be edited after if you want to make any adjustments.

(4) The paper size control is only available if supported by the printer driver. Usually, you will select a kind of *User defined paper* size during the standard Windows printer setup (2) to unlock this feature. You can opt-in to use an individual paper size, again measured in mm.

(5) The green bar is to be seen as the continued path out of the *Graphics processing*. You may choose to automatically turn the orientation of your print file and how many copies you expect to come out at the end. The number of copies can be alternatively set within the abovementioned *Printer settings* (2), eventually including further options.

(6) In this preview area you may make some last adjustments to the graphical positioning and scaling analog to point (9) above during setting-up the graphic processing options.

Event Handling

Auto	Print 2 at & Licesse am thandling Select print channel Channel Channel Channel Channel Channel	Print channel < 1 > Print channel #1 Autostart	Input file folder Graph	ks processing Printer settings	e populately (surge energy)	Discard changes
		Show in main form event log	Log history in local database	Send notification	Restart print channel or AutoPrint application/service	
	System action - Program or service start/stop - Print channel activation	(2)	(3)	(2)	(3)	
چ	Successful file print jobs	 ✓ 	(3)	(2)	3	
	Processing errors - not affecting	 ✓ 	~	8	8	
-	System print channel operation Severe errors - possibly affecting AutoPrint stability	~	~	8	8	
	,			☑ Allow instant notification on defined	l events	
			eMail notification se	tup 2		
				Send test message	From address AutoPri	int@address.org
			SMTP host	Name or IP-address Port	To address	
			User name		Reporting interval	I hr O 24 hrs
			Password		Include inactive periods	

The event handling is reached via the top navigation bar in the square on the most left.

(1) The table in the upper half is the *Event handling matrix*. We are going to decide

- what is displayed in the main form event log
- if an event shall be stored historically in the local AutoPrint database
- if a notification should be sent out triggered by an event
- if your print channel or even the AutoPrint application/service should restart itself

The matrix consists of green ticks and red cross icons which represent the <u>current</u> status. Clicking any of them will invert this option.

(2) If you choose to send out a notification, you can set up your e-mail account SMTP details here.To make sure everything is working just fine, you can send out a test message right away.The information necessary for this process can be given to you by your administrator or your e-mail service provider.

System Settings

The system settings are again reached via the menu bar on top of the screen on the left side. Many of these options must be handled with care. If you do not know what a certain option is doing, please ask your system administrator or research these topics before you make any changes.

Main application window	Windows service setup (Free and Professional lice	nse only)	Print channel kernel 5	
Minimize application window to system tray on startup	Path to the execution file (AutoPrintService.exe) not yet defined	IP-Port 51491	Here you may override certain standard settings of the AutoPrint kernel. Default + all unchecked	
Print special files 2	Account name Password	Connection between application and service	Debug modus - Enables more detailed data and event logging Open life data monitor	
Frequent retry on empty files	Leave empty if installing to the local system account		Keep print channel running after file handling errors	
Process unknown file types as text files, rather than as raw data files	Service is not installed		Be very careful with this one: errors during file deletion or file moving may result in endless printing of the same page(s) !	
Printer spooler		A Oninstal Service	Use alternative PDF-renderer (PDFium)	
Pinitjob name prefix AutoPrint: Each print job sent to the Windows printer spooler will named by the static prefix followed by the original file name			Full reset	
			Al secup-data will be reset to default values. Program and service activities are stopped. Print channels and license information are deleted.	

(1) Main application window

This is an easy one. When you start AutoPrint on your device, do you wish it to be displayed until you minimize it, or do you want it to be started minimized directly?

(2) Print special files

Frequent retry on empty files

If the input file supplying process or the transport channel is rather slow it can happen, that Windows reports a zero file length to AutoPrint. Frequent retying can be helpful here but may temporarily block other files.

Unknown file types

If you throw 'unknown' file types into the print channel, the text file form is sometimes better for the outcome than raw print data files.

(3) Printer spooler

To keep AutoPrint print jobs in your printer spooler separate, you can think of a naming convention (for example different in every AutoPrint installation) which appear in the print spooler.

(4) Windows service setup

These options can only be accessed if you started AutoPrint with administrator privileges. If you would rather run AutoPrint as a service than as an application, you can prepare this here. It is highly recommended setting-up and thoroughly testing all print channels in the desktop mode in before unleashing the service mode. For more information see also the detailed paragraphs down in chapter AutoPrint as a service

(5) Print channel kernel

This is a critical setup area. Please read all the red warnings before making any changes. This area is not relevant in normal AutoPrint operation. You should only alter these options when AutoPrint staff is recommending it in some special circumstances

(6) Full reset

If you want to start all over and pretend you just installed AutoPrint you can launch a factory-reset right here. Be clear you want to do that as all previous settings and print channels you made are then gone. Nevertheless, for manual restoring the former setup you may save the *AutoPrint.db* file, which is located in the hidden Windows folder C:\ProgramData\AutoPrint8

About and Licensing

If you want to register your license you can do this by selecting *About & Licensing* in your top menu bar on the most left.

AutoPrint® Abput & License System Event handling Select print channel Select print	Input file folder Graphics processing Printer settings	
ENGINEERING UEIGINEERING UEIGINERING <td>License agreement AutoPrint LICENSE AGREEMENT 1) This license agreement grants you the right to use AutoPrint on one and only one computer or server. If this assesses is brandfed with a tab Earse a pack page multiple or</td> <td>Update information IMPORTANT NOTES on UPDATING to AUTOPRINT VERSION 8. Make sure that a possible former AutoPrint service installation if any - has been atopped successfully by the new installer. Either unregister the service through the former version: corresponding setup tab or at least disable the service autostat through the regular Windows services management console. To be one version table service form any possible domes versione setup.</td>	License agreement AutoPrint LICENSE AGREEMENT 1) This license agreement grants you the right to use AutoPrint on one and only one computer or server. If this assesses is brandfed with a tab Earse a pack page multiple or	Update information IMPORTANT NOTES on UPDATING to AUTOPRINT VERSION 8. Make sure that a possible former AutoPrint service installation if any - has been atopped successfully by the new installer. Either unregister the service through the former version: corresponding setup tab or at least disable the service autostat through the regular Windows services management console. To be one version table service form any possible domes versione setup.
Support, information and updates AutoPrint home page User manual Download Frequently asked questions FEAD Known issues Issues Upgrade license from Free to Standard or Professional Ordering information	If this agreement is bulned with a lise identification package, mutupe or unimited usage multiple particular fletware notes are included in the instituty includent to distribution context. (2) You must not sell, loan, rent, or transfer the software to another user. The transfer is only permitted for the unregistered free version. (3) You must not modify or patch the AutoPhint executable file in any way, including but not limited to decompling, disassembling, or otherwise reverse engineering the program. (4) For questions or comments regarding this software, please contact uspon(64-tech-engineering com.	The new Verticin Initiaties separate into any possible former Verticin's setup. If you update from 520 on higher, the learnes and all providus settings and provide that higher to the learnes and all provides the learnes of all provides that higher to the learnes of the learnes of the learness of the
	5) Your must not use AutoPinit in the operation of aircraft, ship, nuclear licelities, Bit support trackines, communication systems, or any other equipment in which the failure of the software could lead to personal injury, death, or environmental damage. 6) No liability for consequential damages. Please read the following ¥	AutoPrint Version 8.01 Change Information *** Major version update release *** - Completely rebuild processing engine for further improvement of speed and overall stability - New multitineading and parallel processing terrel enables new speed dimensions on today in multicose CPUs. Print jobs are now being started instantly on file input states then now to all
AutoPrint license registration	Third Party Licenses for 4-Tech-Engineering AutoPrint This document contains either required notices for third party	Each printer can be fed concurrently by multiple print-channels. Each print-channels can hold individual printer settings, like mumber of copies, paper size, print quality or output systection. This feature is now included for all former types New setup CDI for easier and faster print-channel creation.
Line 1 "1st Name (Company Part 1)"	software or the third party licence documents under which the separately isomed code is licenced. Please note that in some cases, the licence listed may differ from the license under which the latest version of the code can be obtained.	Live setup, during setup work the current print-channel pilotesses tenan active. No more desktop lickering on printer channels addressing different printers taplication model Improved live processing monitor, for both, application mode and service mode New enal indication option provides periodic periodic and/or instant reporting on process summaries and eventual errors.
Registration code	Ouck-PDF Version 12.11 of higher PDF processing library by DEBENU Pty Ltd ACN 127 090 180 (http://www.debenit.com/) FreeImage Version 1.0	AutoPrint Version 7.07 Change Information - Security improvement: enclosing service exe path into "" Into the set of

(1) Enter the 3-lines code-set you have received after the online license purchasing process.

By confirming your license credentials, you accept the license agreements of AutoPrint which are displayed in the other half of the screen.

If anything should go wrong throughout the licensing process, just reach out to us and we are sure to find a solution.

AutoPrint as a service

If you intend to run AutoPrint on an unattended Windows or Windows Server system you can setup AutoPrint for working as a Windows32 service. You may test this mode without any lime limitation using your free license version and later decide to upgrade to a professional license for unlimited number of print channels and print operations.

The following paragraphs will lead you through 4 simple steps up to a running service.

(1) Create, setup and test all needed print channels with AutoPrint normally working as a desktop application.

(2) Close and restart AutoPrint with the 'run as administrator' call.

(3) Open the *Setup* window and go to the *System* page.

Windows service setup (Free and Professional license only)				
Path to the execution f ws\AutoPrint\Win32\Re	fi le (AutoPrintService.exe) elease\AutoPrintService.exe	IP-Port 51491		
Account name Password Connection between application and service Leave empty if installing to the local system account				
 Service is not insta Install service 	Iled			
anstall service	Juli i service	n onitistali service		

Here just check whether the shown default *IP-Port* is not in use by another application and then click on *Install service* and *Start service* to complete. The LED at the IP-Port should be turn green soon. If you prefer running the service under a given user account rather than the System account, you may enter the relevant credentials before the install action.

The AutoPrint service has now started and all print channels are ready for operation.



You can now close the Setup window and go back the Main Control window.

Monitoring and maintaining the service

Print-Channel Monitor AutoPrintService is active		Main Control	Admin Level
1 Active Autostart Print channel #1 C:\AutoPrintFiles\Printer	idie - waiting for next file 👘	Stop service activity	setup 🖉
FinePrint Active Autostart Print channel = 2	idle - waiting for next file 🔹	08-26 08:30:16 Free license	<u>a</u>
C: \AutoPrintFiles\Epson ET-3700 Series(Netzwerk)		08-26 08:30:16 ====================================	n Version 8.1 FR4 20210819
3 Active Autostart Print dvannel ≢2 COPY € C:\AutoPrintFiles\EpsonDraft ET-3700 Series(Netzwerk)	ide - waiting for next file 🛛 🏶	08-26 08:30:17 PCh(4) Print-channel initialized 08-26 08:30:17 PCh(3) Print-channel initialized 08-26 08:30:17 PCh(2) Print-channel initialized 08-26 08:30:17 PCh(1) Print-channel initialized	2
4 Active Autostart Print channel ≠4 C:\/utoPrintFiles\Test FinePrint	de - waiting for next file 🛛 🖗	08-26 03:30:17 PCh(5) Print-channel initializer 08-26 09:38:34 Connection to AutoPrint servic 08-26 09:38:34 Porgram directory = C:\Progra 08-26 09:38:34 Data directory = C:\ProgramData V 08-26 09:38:34 Database = C:\ProgramData V	d :e established am Files (x86)\AutoPrintV8 ata\AutoPrint8 AutoPrint8 AutoPrint4.AutoPrint.db
5 Off Autostart Print channel ≠5 C:\utoPrintFiles\Label ○ C:\utoPrintFiles\Label ○ \\DESKTOP-D3QCSHJ]Brother PT-2430PC	Print-channel in pause	08-26 09:38:34 AutoPrint.db dearup 0 Lines o 08-26 09:38:34 Free lcense 08-26 09:38:34 AutoPrint started as service V 08-26 09:38:35 PCh(4) Print-dramel initialized 08-26 09:38:35 PCh(2) Print-dramel initialized 08-26 09:38:35 PCh(2) Print-dramel initialized 08-26 09:38:35 PCh(2) Print-dramel initialized 08-26 09:38:35 PCh(5) Print-dramel initialized 08-26 09:38:35 PCh(5) Print-dramel initialized	deleted fersion 8.1 FR2 20210801 d d d d d v

With the running service the AutoPrint main screen has changed a little, providing helpful information about what is going around in the background.

The desktop applications normal print channel activity has been stopped and deactivated.

(1) A new button on the top right bar allows starting and stopping the running service.

(2) The log panel informs about nearly all service activities like those you have been receiving from the desktop application

(3) The *Print Channel Monitor* on left area turned to a read-only channel activity monitor. It provides the same live-information as known from the desktop-application mode.

Maintaining the print channels

Still or again running in the admin mode, all print channels settings can be modified on-the-fly by just entering the relevant *Setup* panels. There is no need to stop & restart the AutoPrint service. Once an individual print channels setup has been modified and <u>saved</u> the associated service print channel will restart as soon as possible, i.e. right after completion of all pending activities.